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TOWNSHIP OF TEWKSBURY
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY
ORDINANCE NO. 05-2025

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF TEWKSBURY, HUNTERDON
COUNTY, NEW JERSEY AMENDING DESIGN GUIDELINES WITHIN
HISTORIC DISTRICTS, APPENDED TO THE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF TEWKSBURY AS EXHIBIT A

WHEREAS, the Township of Tewksbury (the “Township™) through its Historic Preservation Commission
(the “HPC™) regulates the construction and alteration of the exterior of structures in historic districts; and

WHEREAS, the HPC has amended and updated design guidelines for Township historic districts which
have been approved by the New Jersey State Historic Preservation Office.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the Township of Tewksbury,
Hunterdon County, New Jersey, as follows:

SECTION 1. Appendix A, Design Guidelines Within Historic Districts, of the Township Development
Regulations Ordinance is hereby supplemented with the Historic Design Guidelines dated 2025, attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2. All actions of the Township taken prior to the date of adoption hereof contemplated by this
Ordinance are hereby ratified and approved.

SECTION 3. If any section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as
a whole or any remaining part thereof.

SECTION 4. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances of the Township of Tewksbury heretofore adopted
that are inconsistent with any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent
of such inconsistency.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immcdiately upon its final passage, approval and publication
as provided by law.

| HEREBY CERTIFY the above to be a true copy of an Ordinance introduced by the Township Committec
of the Township of Tewksbury at a duly convened meeting held on October 14, 2025 and adopted on
November 10, 2025,

1917-001\#1205798v1



EXHIBIT A
Historic Design Guidelines
2025
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Agricultural and Commercial Expansion {1820s—1875)

Oldwick grew in the early 19th century, boosted by improved transportation. The New
Germancown Turnpike opened in 1813, connecting the village to regional centers. New
streets like James and William were platted, though growth slowed hriefly after the War
of 1812.

By 1834, Oldwick included about 30 dwellings, a tavern, three stores, and churches
for Lutheran, Methodist, and Presbyzerian congregations, reflecting ics diverse religious
heritage. The Methodist church was founded in 1824 in a modest chapel on James
Street. Prosperity continued mid-century, fueled by agriculture and lime fertilizers, Zion
Lutheran Church was remodeled in 1831 with a relocated west gable entrance, then
expanded with a Greek Revival pediment and Gothic Revival pointed-arch windows.
Barner Hall Academy was also upgraded. In 1868, the Methodists replaced their chapel
with a suhstantial Italianate-Romanesque style church at 43 Old Turnpike Road, featuring
round-arched windows and Wren-Gihbs massing.

Nearby, Dr. Francis Asbury Farley's grave site honors Oldwick’s religious and Civil War
ties. Further north, the Fairmount Methodist (1837) and Preshyrerian (1851) churches
reflect the area’s diverse religious heritage.

Homes from this period were typically Georgian or Federal vernacular, with symmetrical
fagades, gable roofs, and stone foundations. The East Jersey gambrel roof remained
common. Many huildings incorporated Greek Revival cornices or later Victorian
elements like bay windows and porches. Commercial buildings like the Oldwick General
Store and barns behind houses showcase the area’s vernacular craft in wood and swne.

Late Infill and Preservation {1870s-1920s}

In the late 19¢ch century, Oldwick saw larger and more stylistically varied homes, especially
along High Street and areas south of the village core. Examples like 12 King Streec
display Queen Anne features—rurned porch posts, shingled gahles, and asymmetrical
projections. These Victorian homes, set back on larger lots, created 2 more “suburban”
streetscape in contrast to the older, tighdy clustered village center.

Growth slowed after the 1870s, with larger markets drawing husiness away. A proposed
Rockaway Valley Railroad spur briefly connected Oldwick in the 1880s, hu it was
dismantled by 1913. Without dircce rail access, Oldwick remained a quict farming
village. This stagnation preserved its character as the village saw little Victorian boom or
mid-20th-century redevelopment.

By World War I, when anti-German sentiment prompted the renaming of New
Germantown ro Oldwick, the village looked much as it had in the 1860s. Early 20ch-
century changes were modest—one 1819 house was relocated in 1937, and some
buildings received Colonial Revival or Craftsman updates, such as the Coloniat portico

added to the Tewksbury Inn.

In the mid-20th century, affuent urban buvers, drawn by the area’s rural charm, restored
historic homes as country residences. New construction occurred mostly on wooded
lots outside the village core. This tradition of preservation conrinues, keeping Oldwick's
historic huildings—some over 150 years old—remarkably intact.

The Oldwick Historic District’s period of significance spans from the construction of
Zion Lutheran Church in 1749 through World War I, capruring the full arc of the
village’s rural development. It was listed on the New Jersey Register of Historic Places in
1986, the National Register in 1988, and locally designated shortly thereafter.

Historic Context

View of the handcar house at New
Germantown, circa 1895

Dr. Oliver Barnet Homestead | 4¢ Vliettown Rd
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Historic Design Guidelines

Mill Town Expansion and Residential Growth {18505—1900)

Portersville arrained its height of prosperity in the third quarter of the 19th century,
when it became an industrial and commercial hub of surprising scale for a rural village.
Beoween the 1860s and 1890s, the Pottersville mill complex expanded dramatically.
The upper mill was enlarged and outfitred wich advanced hydropower engineering —
an interconnected system of dams, raceways, a storage flume, and a towering penstock
delivered water power to mulriple operations. In addirion to flour milling, a complex
of manufacrories grew: a foundry and machine shop, along with ancillary workshops,
opened in this era. Pottersville’s enterprises were technologically advanced at their peak,
and their products were marketed far beyond the immediate region.

The village benefited from connection ro transportation neoworks — good roads and a
nearby rail line — allowing local mills to ship goods to market. By the 1880s, Poccersville
was a thriving community boasting a hotel, multiple stores, a post office, a schoolhouse,
and dozens of residences for workers and merchants. In the 1890s, the viflage even
became a destination for leisure: the Black River Falls Park opened as an excursion resort,
drawing visitors to picnic and enjoy the scenic gorge. The Pottersville Hotel, originally
opened around the 1830s and later expanded, lodged travelers and seasonal visitors. The
architecrural flowering of this period was substantial — far more ornamental architecture
appeared here than in Tewksbury’s other villages. Several srylish homes were built for
mill owners and successful entrepreneurs, while older farmhouses were updared with
fashionable trim.

Addirionally, simpler houses sport Folk Victorian porches with turned posts or jig-
sawn trim — embellishments that gave even vernacular homes a wuch of 19ch-cencury
clegance. Meansvhile, the majority of buildings continued ro be vernacular adaprarions of
the Georgian or Federal tradicion or the popular patrern-book L-plan farmhouse—cencer—
hall, gable-front or L-shaped houses with balanced facades — constructed by local builders
using timber framing and clapboard.

Industrial Decline and Preservation (1900-1950s)

Poutersville’s forrunes waned after the 1910s, as its industrial era ended. A series of closures
in the early 20th century marked the close of the village's significant growth period. The
Black River Falls amusement park shut down by 1925, the Excel Manufacturing foundry
complex ceased operations, and its buildings were demolished. The lower mill stopped
milling flour around 1915 before eventually being razed in the 1970s. The Portersville
Hotel closed its doors around 1928 and was converted to a boarding house for farm
laborers. The old lower dam was breached in 1946, and by mid-century the industrial
hearrbeacwas gone— the upper mill itself, remarkably, continued water-powered operation
under Vernon Wortman until 1957, after which it was converted to an antiques shop and
residence. Despite these changes, Pottersville never became a ghost town; it transitioned
into a quiet residential hamlet and local service center.

Portersville spans portions of Tewksbury and neighboring Bedminster and Washingron
Townships. recognizing this tri-county village’s historical significance in industry,
commerce, architecture, and settlement pacterns. The Pottersville Village Historic
Districr’s period of significance spans from the construction of the mills circa 1750 to the
shurrering of its last industrial businesses around 1924. Tt was officially [isted on the New
Jersey and National Registers of Historic Places in 1990 and locally-designated shortly
thereafter.

18




























































































































































































































